INTRODUCTION

This is an appeal from an erroneous, if not wholly

misunderstood, ruling on a Petition for Mandamus and

Prohibition by the Superior Court of Kitsap County, Haberly, J., 

denying" the Petition without deciding Count III, which was

the core issue in the Petition, even denying it after a Motion for

Reconsideration was specifically directed to the issue. Count

III petitioned for both Prohibition and Mandamus to the lower

court, acting Infraction jurisdiction, on the Constitutionality of

an alleged administrative regulation of the Kitsap Health

District forcing a property owner to contract for an " inspection" 

of an on -site septic system from a list of "approved" inspectors

by said District for a fee. 

This Court must be advised that the Director of the

Health District was named and served as a party and is subject

ex officio to Count III as the administrator of the regulation at

issue. The Court below obviously did not consider this. 

Moreover, this Court has its own jurisdiction over these Writs. 



ERRATA

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. The Court below erred in remanding the case to the

Infraction Court without deciding the Constitutionality of

administrative regulations of the Kitsap County Health District

properly raised in Count III of the Petition for a Writ of

Prohibition and Mandamus directed to the Director when

named as a party separately from the Infraction Court. 

2. This Court possess jurisdiction independent of the Court

below to entertain said Writs and decide the Constitutionality of

said administrative regulations. 

ISSUE: 

Whether the administrative regulations of the Kitsap

County Health District adopted pursuant to State law are

unconstitutional under the liberty, property, and due process

clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment when forcing a property

owner having a septic tank system to contract to have an

inspection" of that system with a private " inspector "? 

2- 



STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellants ( " Holcomb ") own a house and property on

waterfront on Bainbridge Island, Washington. CP 18 Since the

early 1980' s to 2001, Holcomb and the Respondent ( " Health

District ") have been engaged in a dispute over whether the

septic tank system on said property needs to be " repaired ". The

system was a simple septic tank with an associated drain field. 

There had been no failure of the system, no complaints, no

evidence of smell, no evidence of leakage, and it worked

properly. Notwithstanding, the Health District remained

persistent. The first series of visits from the Health District

occurred while a divorce was in process with Holcomb' s first

wife threatening " repair ", and the second series began in 1995

immediately after his second marriage to Karen. The Director

of the Health District at both times was a close friend of

Holcomb' s first wife. Despite repeated threats, no alleged

repair" was ordered. There were still no problems evident

from his system. CP 1 - 17. 
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On or about 1999, the Health District began a further

series of persistent actions to have his system " repaired ", 

culminating in litigation in Superior Court of Kitsap County

before visiting Judge Majhan from Jefferson County. Despite

the testimony of 3 qualified experts for Holcomb testifying that

his system did not have to be repaired, Judge Majhan ordered

repair ". CP 166 -167, Ex. C ( 2) In order to remain in his

house and over strenuous objection, Holcomb then had an

alternative" system installed, called a " Glendon Biofilter" 

system at a cost of some $ 26, 000 in 2001 dollars. CP -18

2) Holcomb received a visit during this time from an alleged " finance" 
expert that he was there to buy Holcomb' s property for 10¢ on the dollar, 

and said expert set forth an elaborate and very sophisticated scam of
property owners, who were retired or about to retire, in Kitsap County
using insider information from employees of the Health District. Holcomb
provided authorities with a significant amount of circumstantial and other

evidence that this scam existed, including some from a former Sheriff' s
deputy hired by him to investigate. An estimated million dollars was

required to prosecute the scam. Nothing was ever done, even though some
two years later certain employees of the Health District were convicted of

crimes in relation to releasing insider information on matters on a different
claim. CP 11 - 23



Nothing in that Order, or subsequently, contained a

provision to obtain an " Operation and Maintenance" ( " O &M" 

herein) agreement, at issue in this appeal. However, the

Glendon installer forced Holcomb to sign such an agreement, 

although Holcomb never paid the sum set forth in the contract

nor was an " inspection" ever done. CP 15 - 18

This O &M agreement is required annually. CP 112 -144

For some 10 years thereafter and from time -to -time, the Health

District sent Holcomb notice that he had to obtain such an

agreement, and each time Holcomb objected.. Nothing was

ever done, and nothing of the kind has been done to this date. 

However, in January, 2011, the Health District sent a

letter to Holcomb that he had to obtain such an agreement. 

There was no record of this provided by the Director in the

Court below, but this is not contested) Holcomb refused. On

or about June, 2011, an " infraction" notice was served on him, 

calling on him to pay a fine of $624. 00. 



When it became apparent that the Infraction court did not

have the necessary procedural, jurisdictional, and Constitutional

authority, Holcomb filed the within Petition for the Writs in the

Superior Court. Holcomb included Ex' s. A -Q in support of his

Petition. CP 1 - 86

The Commissioner of this Court, who must have also

been confused as to what was at issue in terms of Constitutional

relief not available in the Infraction court or available in this

Court, refused to stay this action pending this appeal. 

Accordingly, a hearing was held on June 27, 2012, at which

time Holcomb presented 8 different defenses running from

statute of limitations to government misconduct, but not

including the Constitutional issue in this appeal, since the Court

indicated that it had no jurisdiction for this issue. The Court has

not yet issued its decision. 

It is plain from CP 24 that the Health District does not

need the O &M contract with an " inspector ", since it already has

the capability and manpower to do it on its own. It is also plain
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that the Infraction court, either by statute or practice, does not

have equity jurisdiction nor declaratory jurisdiction as to

Constitutional claims. The Health District has not contested the

unconstitutionality of this O &M requirement this nor presented

any authority below to contest it, either in the Infraction court

or the Court below. The regulations at issue, but more properly

some of the regulations at issue, are attached to the Answer of

the Respondent. CP 112 -144. However, what is missing is the

actual process of "inspecting" a system as contained in, what is

called, the " Field Manual ". The Court below over objection

did not rule on this. This Field Manual sets forth what is meant

by that word " inspection ", as well as who can be approved

inspectors ", and the price regulation of the amount to be paid

to them as $ 300.00. 

What is equally objectionable is Ex. " K" ( CP 33) to the

Petition herein, which is the alleged " operation and

maintenance" contract at issue in 2001. Page 2, and any

subsequent pages, are not included. In any case, Holcomb
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signed that contract then over protest in that this was not

required by the Court Order. As indicated above, the fee

additionally was never paid nor was there any " inspection" of

the system thereafter. There is no evidence that the Health

District ever objected to that lack of payment or the lack of

inspection, then or later, to date. The Health District does not

have, apparently, a form contract for 0 & M contractors. They

do provide a list of " approved" O &M contractors, but a

property owner has to go to their alleged " website" ( if they

have a computer) to obtain that list. Holcomb never did that, as

he objected to this whole O &M procedure ab initio. 

Holcomb has never had an " inspection" since the

Glendon system was installed. There has never been a failure



or complaint or need for such an O &M agreement. (3) 

This matter is otherwise ripe for review factually on the

Constitutional issue. 

3) In passing this Court should note that this Infraction
jurisdiction does not provide the relief the Health District seeks in
requiring Holcomb to have an O &M agreement. The relief, if awarded, is

a fine only, which Holcomb can pay, if required, and still not have such an
agreement. This absence of an appropriate provision to the issue was
another reason Holcomb filed the within Petition in Superior Court, since
it was this Superior Court which issued the " repair" Order in the first place
in 2001 and was the Court which had jurisdiction to Order Holcomb to
obtain such an agreement. Why the Court below ignored this is
inexplicable. The Health District has never filed this matter in Superior

Court for reasons, or the lack of them, that are equally inexplicable, as
well as its proceeding under Infraction jurisdiction. Mr. Wachter, 

Respondent' s attorney herein, indicated to the Infraction Court on June 27, 
that the " Health District is not out to get Holcomb." Holcomb invites Mr. 
Wachter to repeat this assertion to this Court. But by proceeding the way
it has, the Health District is clearly trying to do so. 
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ARGUMENT

The core argument in this Appeal is that the forced

requirement for a property owner to have O &M agreement is

unconstitutional and within the jurisdiction for both Writs in

Superior Courts and for this Court also. ( 4). 

The wording of the last Order of the Court below on

Reconsideration was specifically directed to the

4) Holcomb moved for and the Court herein granted a rather long
extension for the purpose of reviewing the U. S. Supreme Court decision
in National Federation ofBusiness v. Sibelius, 567 U. S. ( 2012) 

NFB "). The Court decided this on Thursday, June 27, 2012. The
Affordable Health Care Act ( "ACA ") 124 Stat. 119 was at issue. The

Florida District Court struck down the individual mandate provision of

that act, and one of the reasons was forcing a citizen to contract, in that
case for health care coverage. This same briefing occurred on appeal
before the 11

Eh

Circuit, and that Court affirmed the lower court @ 648 F. 
3d 1235 ( 2011). Much of the authority cited below is from the briefing
before the

11th

Circuit and, to Holcomb' s belief and informal information, 
this briefing was also filed with the Supreme Court. Indeed, the Supreme
Court decision was on certiorari from that Court. Holcomb anticipated

that the Supreme Court would rely on that decision and the briefing in
reaching its decision. 

Holcomb has reviewed several times all 193 pages of the decision

and, unfortunately and inexplicably, finds no reference at all to the forcing
of a contract, as aforesaid. How such a major issue can be ignored by both
the majority and dissent is highly puzzling, but such is the case. Thus, and
with thanks to this Court in the process for this extension, no reference
will be made any further to NFB, id., in this Argument as to this case. 



Constitutionality of the O &M regulation at issue deserves

special quoting for this Court' s information: 

The Motion for Reconsideration focuses on Petitioner' s

argument that this Court should determine the

constitutionality of the Health District regulation. A

claim is made that the District Court (sic) does not

have jurisdiction to determine the constitutionality
of a regulation, and this issue has " great public impact" 

as it affects " thousands of property owners. Whether

or not these arguments have merit, the Petitioner has

not invoked the jurisdiction of this Court to decide

such issues.... The action filed by the Petitioner is
simply a request for issuance of the three Writs
described above and nothing more and gives no
jurisdiction to this Court beyond that requested." 

With respect to the Court below, this is, at best, baffling

and a confused Order. It is plainly in error. R.C.W. 7. 16

authorizes these Writs, both there and in this Court. 

The O &M contract requirement is a violation of the

Fourteenth Amendment to the U. S. Constitution, wherein it

states, in part: " no state... shall deprive any person of life, 

liberty or property without due process of law." 

The seminal case prohibiting States from forcing a

citizen to contract comes within the concept of liberty, which



term includes " the right of the individual to contract..." Meyer

v. State of Nebraska, 262 U.S. 390, @ 399, 43 S. Ct. 625, 67

L.Ed. 1042 ( 1923). A Nebraska statute forced a teacher under

contract to use only the English language. 

The Health District derives its existence and authority

from State of Washington statute, Chapters 70.05, 70. 118, and

70. 118A. The Fourteenth Amendment, perforce, applies to the

Health District. ( 5) 

Other authority applies. In Calder v. Bull, 3 U.S. 388

1800), the Court warned against presuming that " the people

have] entrusted[ ed] a legislature" with the power to " take

property from A. and give it to B." ( p. 390) . 

Moreover, in 3 Joseph Story, Commentaries on the

Constitution of the United States, the writer stated in § 1393, p. 

268 ( 1833), with reference to Calder, id., that even

independently of the Constitution of the United States," such

5) The Attorney General of the State of Washington, Mr. McKenna, 
appeared in and concurred in the briefs filed on behalf of the NFB, id., in
opposing forced contracts



laws contravene " the nature of republican and free

governments." 

As further support on the issue of who should be

responsible for payment of the O &M cost, the burden should

not be on the individual and ought to be sustained by society at

large. See, Van Horne' s Lessee, 2 U.S. @ p. 310 and

Armstrong v. United States, 364 U.S. 40, 49 ( 1960). 

Also, neither the Congress nor a State legislature should

be presumed to have the power to force a new contract on a

citizen " without his assent, for the assent of all parties to be

bound by a contract be of its essence." Cf. Trustees of

Dartmouth College, 17 U. S. 518, pp. 662 -663 ( 1819). 3 Story, 

id., adds this observation, ".. creating a contract is within the

mischief, and equally unjust and ruinous, as unconstitutionality

impairing or destroying one." @ § 1392. 

More recent authority supports the above contract as

coming within the meaning of due process. In Allied Structural

Steel Co. v. Spannus, 438 U.S. 234 ( 1978), a contract was



invalidated in a pension fund matter for basically the same due

process reasons above. The Fourteenth Amendment' s

companion is the Fifth Amendment, and the latter also contains

a " takings" clause as well as a " due process" clause. The said

due process" clause of the latter, parroting the same language

in the Fourteenth Amendment, has interpreted contracts under

this latter clause as prohibiting forced contracts. The majority

in E. Enterprises, 524 U.S. @ 522 -523 decided a contract issue

under the " takings" clause, but Justice Kennedy in concurring

reached the same conclusion under the " due process" clause. 

Holcomb relies on this decision in support of his arguments

under the Fourteenth Amendment. 

It is unassailable that the O &M contract provision is a

forced contract. It is also unassailable that: 

1. The Health District has the manpower, training, and

capability to have one of its own personnel do this

inspection "; 



2. There is no negotiation, better said as contracting, 

between a property owner and an " inspector" over the

price or even terms, as these are set by the Health

District; 

3. There is no provision for a property owner to obtain this

service from a person of his choice, e. g., one who lives

and works in a neighboring county ( how many property

owners in Kitsap County live in close proximity to a

neighboring county ?), or from a retired " inspector" who

possess the alleged qualifications, or a relative

somewhere who possess the same; 

4. Requires it even when there is no failure of the system; 

5. Not the least of the objections is that there is an inherent

self interest for the " inspector" to find some problem, 

thereby requiring him to " repair" it, with the property

owner having no recourse, no one knows the extent of

this unnecessary repair, since the Health District takes it



for granted that the " inspector" is correct and there is no

provision for review; and, 

6. such a system is a prime process for corruption and

bribery for an " inspector" to get on the list, or even give

kickbacks ( see footnote ( 2) above and attachment C & D

newspaper articles related to insider abuse) to Ex ( g) to

the Petition here). ( 6) 

Asking this Court to decide whether this " fee" is a special

tax" not legislated or approved is not necessary for the above

due process reasons. Moreover, the issue was never argued

below. 

Under the above authorities and Fourteenth Amendment due

process, a State government agency is prohibited from forcing a

6) The record shows that there are approximately 4, 000 property owners
in Kitsap County affected by this forced contract requirement. Calculating
this number times $ 300 means that approximately $ 1, 200,000 is extracted

annually from property owners, much of said sum being wholly
unnecessary without evidence of any " failure ". Holcomb has had no
failure. 



citizens to contract for a service, especially when that

service is part of the agency' s capabilities to provide. 



CONCLUSION

This Court should find that the Writs of Prohibition and

Mandamus should be granted and order that these forced

contract O &M provisions of the Health District are

unconstitutional as a depriving a citizen of the liberty and

property provisions protections, incorporating due process, of

the Fourteenth Amendment. This Court should grant the

Petition for Prohibition and Mandamus under its own authority

or remand the case to the Superior Court ordering that Court to

grant the same, accordingly, declare that the O &M contract

regulations of the Health District are unconstitutional, and to

direct dismissal of the Infraction notice. 

ect y sub

yron Holcomb, Petitioner