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

signed a Notice to Title acknowledging that this was an alternative system

requiring special monitoring and maintenance. CP 49.

Consistent with this Notice, and pursuant to the understanding that

alternative systems tend to be more complicated and have proprietary parts

that require special training to work on, Section 17(a) of Ordinance 2008 -1

requires owners of alternative systems "obtain and maintain a valid

monitoring and maintenance service contract with a monitoring and

maintenance service provider certified by the Health Officer...." CP 119.

3 The Bremerton - Kitsap County Health District became the Kitsap County Health District.

3—



Mr. Holcomb obtained such a contract (O &M contract) for the first year after

installation ofhis alternative system, i.e., from October 1, 2001 to October 1,

2002. CP 56. However, Mr. Holcomb failed and admittedly continues to fail

to renew this contract or obtain a new one. CP 43, 44.

As Mr. Holcomb should have known from having entered into such a

contract initially and as was made clear to him in a letter in 2011, while a

certified provider is required, the choice ofwho to hire and how much to pay

is left to the discretion of the homeowner. CP 47. Nowhere in the record, or

anywhere in Health District regulations, does the Health District demand

specific contractors or contract amounts.

B. The Infraction

For Mr. Holcomb's admitted failure to provide for the effective

maintenance of his alternative sewage system, the Health District cited him

with an infraction in June 2011. CP 106. A hearing was set before the

Kitsap County District Court in accordance with RCW 7.80.010 and the

Infraction Rules for Courts of Limited Jurisdiction (IRLJ). CP 25. At the

September 7, 2011 hearing, Mr. Holcomb demanded that his previously filed

Motion to Dismiss be granted because the Health District did not file a

4 This letter is in response to Mr. Holcomb's request for a new pen in 2011. The permit
application filed with the Health District indicates it was to rebuild a garage, CP 58, but the
Petition filed in Kitsap County Superior Court stated that it was to tear down and replace

4—



response. No briefing is required for infractions hearings under IRLJ 3. 1, so

the Health District merely came to the hearing prepared with its attorney and

a fact witness to testify. The District Court declined to rule on Mr.

Holcomb's motion, and instead established a briefing schedule for both

parties and set a new hearing date of February 1, 2012. CP 52 -53. This

hearing was eventually rescheduled and the matter heard on June 27, 2012.

In a letter opinion dated July 24, 2012, the district court denied Mr.

Holcomb's motions and found the infraction committed. Exhibit A.'

C. Petitions for Writs of Mandamus and Prohibition

While the briefing schedule was proceeding, Mr. Holcomb sought

intermediate relief by filing with the Kitsap County Superior Court Petitions

for a Writ of Mandamus and two Writs of Prohibition. CP 1 -17. The

requested Writ of Mandamus was directed to the district court demanding

that it grant Mr. Holcomb'smotion to dismiss the infraction. CP 6. The first

Writ of Prohibition was an alternative to the Writ of Mandamus and

demanded that the superior court take jurisdiction away from the district court

and rule on the infraction itself. CP 10 -11. The second Writ of Prohibition

was directed to both the Health District and the Prosecuting Attorney'soffice,

the existing home. CP 13.
5

Respondents request that the court take judicial notice of this decision as allowed by ER
201 and as was similarly allowed by this court in DeLong v. Parmelee, 164 Wn. App. 781,

5—



as the Health District's attorney, to forever prohibit any contact with Mr.

Holcomb regarding the requirement for an Operation and Maintenance

Agreement. CP 12. It appears to be the latter Writ of Prohibition that is

challenged here.

The Superior Court denied all three writs in its oral ruling on October

31, 2012, and in writing on November 10, 2012. CP 180 -181. Mr.

Holcomb'sMotion for Reconsideration was also denied. CP 204 -205. Mr.

Holcomb then appealed to this Court.

IV. ARGUMENT

A. Introduction

According to the Assignments of Error, Mr. Holcomb appeals the

superior court's denial ofhis second request for a Writ ofProhibition against

the Health District and the Prosecutor'sOffice. Appellant'sOpening Brief

at 2 (Errata). Specifically, he claims the superior court erred by not ruling on

the constitutional issue raised in this request, found in Count III of his

Petition. Id. Mr. Holcomb also claims that the court of appeals has

785 fn. 4, 267 P.3d 410 (2011).
6 Nowhere in Appellant's Opening Brief does Mr. Holcomb raise any issue with respect to

the Prosecuting Attorney'sOffice. See generally, Appellant's Opening Brief. The request
for a Writ of Prohibition against the Prosecutor's Office has thus not been advanced on
appeal and should be considered abandoned under State v. Wood, 89 Wn.2d 97, 569 P.2d
1148 (1977)(A parry abandons an issue by failing to pursue it on appeal by failing to brief
the issue) and Talps v. Arreola, 83 Wn.2d 655, 521 P.2d 206 (1974)(the appellant had
abandoned a claim on appeal because she failed to include argument or cites to authority on

6—



independent jurisdiction to decide the constitutionality of the Health

District's regulations. Neither claim can be sustained in this case. Further,

the stated issue is inappropriate as it does not follow from the appeal. Mr.

Holcomb's appeal must be denied and the superior court's decision upheld.

B. The Constitutional Issue

I . This issue is not properly before the Court.

In general, new issues may not be raised for the first time on appeal.

One of the narrow exceptions is when there is a "manifest constitutional

error." 
8

Manifest means that there is actual prejudice, which requires the

appellant to make a plausible showing that the asserted error had practical

and identifiable consequences in the lower court. Manifest also means that

the record from the trial court is sufficient to demonstrate the merits of the

constitutional claim. 
10

Without a sufficient record, the error cannot be

manifest and the issue cannot be considered." With the "manifest"

requirement, clearly not all constitutional claims may be first raised on

appeal.

the issue).
RAP 2.5; Parrell- Sisters MHC LLC v. Spokane County, 147 Wn. App. 356,363-364,195
P.3d 573 (2008).

8 RAP2.5(a)(3)(emphasis added).
9 State v. Kirkman, 159 Wn.2d 918, 935, 155 P.3d 125 (2007); State v. McFarland, 127

Wn.2d 322, 333, 899 P.2d 1251 (1995).
10 Parrell- Sisters, 147 Wn. App. at 364.
11 Id.

7-



Here, Mr. Holcomb has not met his burden to show that his newly

raised constitutional claim should be considered. Most significantly, the

record below is devoid of any meaningful discussion of constitutional issues

or of sufficient facts to support a determination. See e.g., CP 6 -8, 15, 150-

152, 171 -172, 194 -195. At best, Mr. Holcomb's arguments below are

nothing more than mere "naked castings into the constitutional sea [that] are

not sufficient to command judicial consideration and discussion." 
12

Furthermore as aptly noted by the superior court in the Order Denying

Motion for Reconsideration, "Petitioner has not invoked the jurisdiction of

this Court to decide such issues." CP 205.

Additionally, Mr. Holcomb provides no evidence of actual prejudice.

As will be shown in Section IV(C) below, the questions before the superior

court were solely whether writs of mandamus and prohibition were

warranted. CP 1 -17. These writs may only be granted if there is either a

clear duty to act (for a writ ofmandamus) or a clear duty not to act (for a writ

ofprohibition), and only if there is no other remedy at law. Where an appeal

is provided, there is a remedy and a writ may not issue. Here, neither writ

could have been issued because there was, and still remains at this time, an

12 Mudarri v. State, 147 Wn. App. 590, 616, 196 P.3d 153 (2008)(quoting United States v.
Phillips, 433 F.2d 1364, 1366 (8 Cir. 1970), cert. denied, 401 U.S. 917, 91 S.Ct. 900,27
L.Ed.2d 819 (1971)).

8—



opportunity to appeal from the district court. Accordingly, regardless of

whether the Health District's action was based on a constitutional or

unconstitutional law, the writs could not have been issued. The refusal for

the superior court to consider any constitutional issue thus did not prejudice

Mr. Holcomb; the outcome would have been the same. The newly raised

error is not "manifest" and cannot be considered here.

2. Mr. Holcomb has failed to prove the ordinance is

unconstitutional.

Even if this court gratuitously considers the constitutional issue, Mr.

Holcomb has failed to demonstrate the unconstitutionality of Ordinance

2008 -1. His appeal must be denied.

All duly adopted regulations are presumed constitutional. The

burden is on the challenger to prove a regulation'sunconstitutionality, and it

is a heavy one that requires proof beyond a reasonable doubt. 
14

Every

presumption will be indulged in favor of constitutionality. 
15

It appears that Mr. Holcomb challenges Ordinance 2008 -1, in

particular Section 13(C)(17), on the grounds that requiring an O &M

13 Inland Foundry Co., Inc. v. Department ofLaborandlndustries, 106 Wn. App. 333, 339,
24 P.3d 424 (2001).

14 Id. See also, City ofPasco v. Shaw, 161 Wn.2d 450, 458, 166 P.3d 1157 (2007), Belas v.
Kiga, 135 Wn.2d 913, 920, 959 P.2d 1037 (1998).

15 J& B Development Co., Inc. v. King County, 29 Wn. App. 942, 946, 631 P.2d 1002
1981).

9—



agreement is a taking of life, liberty or property without due process under the

Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. His statements also appear

to suggest that he is claiming that the ability to contract is a liberty right that

cannot be impinged upon. However, not one of his cases involve a situation

like the one at bar. For example, Mr. Holcomb cites Calder v. Bull, but there

the court ruled only on the issue ofwhether the challenged legislative act was

an ex post facto law. 
16

And, when referring to a contract in dicta, it merely

mentioned the impairment of an existing one. 
17

Similarly, Mr. Holcomb cites

Vanhorne 's Lessee v. Dorrance, but there the court ruled only on whether the

act was an ex post facto law or an impairment of an existing contract." The

issue of future contracts was never mentioned. The cases of Trustees of

Dartmouth College v. Woodward, Allied Structural Steel Co. v. Spannus and

Eastern Enterprises v. Apfel are the same: impairment of an existing contract

was the issue, never the ability to require one in the first instance. 
19

Accordingly, Mr. Holcomb has not established any legal authority for his

claim of unconstitutionality.

Mr. Holcomb also asserts facts that are either erroneous or are

16

Appellant's Opening Brief at 12; Calder v. Bull, 3 U.S. 386, 387 (1800).
17

Calder, 3 U.S. at 388.

Appellant'sOpening Briefat 13; Vanhorne'sLessee v. Dorrance, 2 U.S. 304, 319 (1795).
19 Trustees of Dartmouth College v. Woodward, 17 U.S. 518, 595 -96 (1819); Allied

Structural Steel Co. v. Spannus, 438 U.S. 234, 244 -45, 98 S.Ct. 2716 (1978); Eastern
Enterprises v. Apfel, 524 U.S. 498, 533 -536, 118 S.Ct. 2131 (1998).

10—



speculative. For example, Mr. Holcomb asserts that the Health District has

the manpower to perform inspections itsel£ There is, however, not one

shred of evidence of this in the record nor does he cite to any. Mr. Holcomb

also asserts that the terms of the required contract are set by the Health

District and that the property owner is unable to choose who to contract

with . To the contrary, in the 2011 letter to Mr. Holcomb regarding his

request for a new permit to rebuild his house, the Health District provides

him with a list of contractors from which to choose. CP 47. The only

requirement is that the contractor be licensed. Additionally, Mr. Holcomb

cites to no regulation, letter or other authority for the claim that cost or terms

are set by the Health District. In reality, those are negotiated directly between

the contractor and the property owner. Finally, Mr. Holcomb complains that

the chosen contractor has an inherent conflict and will be corrupt. Again,

there is no evidence of this anywhere in the record. Even a quick skim of the

documents referenced reveals no indication of such allegations. CP 50, 51.

With no legal authority and no facts in support, Mr. Holcomb'sclaim

that Ordinance 2008 -1 is unconstitutional lacks merit and must be rejected.

20

Appellant's Opening Brief at 14.
Id. at 15.

22

Additionally, courts cannot presume that a party will violate the law without evidence in
support. Armour & Co. v. Jesmer, 76 Wash. 475, 479, 136 P. 689 (1913).

mom



C. Denial of the Writ of Prohibition

On the issue properly before the court — that is the decision of the

superior court denying the writ ofprohibition — this appeal cannot stand. On

appeal, decisions regarding writs of prohibition are reviewed for abuse of

discretion with an eye toward "the character and function of the writ of

prohibition together with all the facts and circumstances shown by the

record. " An abuse of discretion occurs when the trial court makes a

decision that is manifestly unreasonable or is based on untenable reasons. 
24

A decision is manifestly unreasonable if it takes a view that no reasonable

person would take, and it rests on untenable reasons if it is the result of an

incorrect standard or facts that do not meet the correct standard.

Writs of prohibition are governed by Chapter 7.16 RCW. This

chapter gives the superior court authority to issue such a writ in order to

arrest[] the proceedings ofany tribunal, corporation, board or person, when

such proceedings are without or in excess of the jurisdiction of such tribunal,

corporation, board or person. " Writs ofprohibition are allowed only when

1) a state actor is about to act in excess of its jurisdiction and (2) the

2 ' 

City ofOlympia v. Thurston County Bd. of Com'rs, 131 Wn. App. 85, 91, 125 P.3d 997
2005).

24

Yousoufian v. Office of Ron Sims, 168 Wn.2d 444, 471 -472, 229 P.3d 735 (2010).
25

Id.; In re Marriage ofLittlefield, 133 Wn.2d 39, 47, 940 P.2d 1362 (1997).
26 RCW 7.16.290.
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petitioner does not have a plain, speedy, and adequate legal remedy. ,27 It

must be clear and inarguable that the body to which a writ of prohibition is

directed entirely lacks jurisdiction. 
28

Further, if either one of these factors is

absent the court cannot issue the writ. 
29

As the U.S. Supreme Court has

confirmed, writs are drastic remedies that may only be issued in extraordinary

situations. 
30

1. The Health District was not outside of its jurisdiction

As just mentioned, a writ of prohibition is allowed only in those

special cases where the actor is acting "in excess" ofits jurisdiction. The writ

of prohibition challenged here requested that the superior court stop the

Health District from "further contact of any kind with Holcomb with regard

to his alleged ` requirement' that Holcomb obtain a Maintenance and

Operation Agreement (Ò &M') with a private contractor to ìnspect' his on-

site septic tank system...." CP 12.

In the court below, Mr. Holcomb failed to prove that the Health

District was acting in excess of its jurisdiction when it issued the citation or

required the O &M agreement. First, Mr. Holcomb appeared to claim that

2' Brower v. Charles, 82 Wn. App. 53, 57, 914 P.2d 1202 (1996).
28 Barnes v. Thomas, 96 Wn.2d 316, 318, 635 P.2d 135 (1981).
29

Brower, 82 Wn. App. at 57 -58.
30 Kerr v. U.S. District Courtfor Northern District ofCalifornia, 426 U.S. 394, 402, 96 S.Ct.

2119 (1976); Brower v. Charles, 82 Wn. App. at 57.

13—



because the Health District conducted a site visit in response to Mr.

Holcomb's request for a new permit, that the Health District had discharged

its duties and could not require more. In support, Mr. Holcomb refers to the

Health. District's 2011 letter, CP 47; however, this letter does not show that

the Health District performed any inspection of the alternative sewage

system, much less found it adequate.

Furthermore, a site visit performed upon a permit application is

wholly different than the detailed inspection necessary to confirm the

functioning of an alternative septic system. The successful operation of any

sewage system, including the performance of all maintenance and repairs, is

the obligation of the property owner. Thus the property owner, not the Health

District, must do what is required for its functionality. Mr. Holcomb chose to

install the complicated Glendon system and thus chose the situation of

needing someone with specialized knowledge to monitor, maintain and repair

it. This is no different than Mr. Holcomb being required to hire a contractor

to repair a failing system, except that with an alternative system the

obligation to contract is in advance of any failure rather than after. The

superior court properly rejected this argument.

Second, Mr. Holcomb claimed that the Health District had a duty to

inspect and determine compliance, and that such was non - delegable.

14..,



However, after citing one case for the general rule, there was no showing that

any alleged delegation fell within the rule and was thus prohibited. Without

legal or factual support for a conclusory statement, the superior court properly

rejected this argument as well.

Finally, Mr. Holcomb claimed in a summary statement that there was

no authority for requiring a property owner to "contract for anything." CP 15.

Such broad assertions, without any evidence or authority in support, are

insufficient to satisfy any burden of proof, especially one as demanding as

that required for an extraordinary writ ofprohibition. The superior court did

not err in rejecting this argument either.

In sum, the superior court did not abuse its discretion in rejecting Mr.

Holcomb'sunfounded claims that the Health District exceeded its jurisdiction

in requiring an O &M agreement or in issuing a citation therefor. The

superior court's decision was not manifestly unreasonable nor based on

untenable grounds. It should be upheld.

2. There is a plain, speedy and adequate remedy

A writ of prohibition also cannot be issued because another remedy

exists. Under RCW 7.16.300, a writ ofprohibition is appropriate only when

there is not a plain, speedy, and adequate remedy in the ordinary course of

law." As this court held in City of Olympia v. Thurston County Board of

15



Commissioners,

What constitutes a plain, speedy, and adequate remedy
depends on the facts of the case and rests within the sound
discretion of the court in which the writ is sought. A remedy
may be adequate even if attended with delay, expense,
annoyance, or some hardship. There must be something in
the nature of the action that makes it apparent that the rights
of the litigants will not be protected or full redress afforded
without issuance of the writ. 

31

When an aggrieved party has an opportunity to appeal, courts have

consistently found that a plain, speedy and adequate remedy is available and

have denied writs. 
32

Courts have also determined that any delays and

annoyances incident to an appeal do not affect the adequacy thereo£

Mr. Holcomb already has an adequate remedy through the district

court action that is currently pending. He was afforded a full and fair hearing

in that tribunal, complete with the opportunity to provide written briefs,

introduce evidence and make oral arguments. The record is fully developed

there. In addition, Mr. Holcomb has asked for reconsideration and will also

have the ability to appeal in accordance with RCW7.80.100(5), IRLJ 5. 1, and

the Rules for Appeal of Decisions of Courts in Limited Jurisdiction (RALJ).

Thus, even though the district court lacks jurisdiction to determine

31

City of Olympia, 131 Wn. App. at 96.
32 State ex rel. Burkhard v. Superior Courtfor Clark County, 11 Wn.2d 600, 602, 120 P.2d

477 (1941).
33 Id.
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constitutional issues, that issue, if properly raised and preserved, can be

addressed on an appeal to the superior court.

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